
Civic Centre, Windmill Street, Gravesend Kent DA12 1AU

Cabinet

Members of the Cabinet of Gravesham Borough Council are summoned to attend a meeting to 
be held Virtually on Monday, 1 June 2020 at 7.30 pm when the business specified in the following 
agenda is proposed to be transacted. Details on how Members can attend the meeting will be sent 
separately. 

In response to COVID-19, the Government has legislated to permit remote attendance by Elected 
Members at formal meetings. This is conditional on other Elected Members and the public being 
able to hear those participating in the meeting. This meeting will be streamed live and can be 
watched via Gravesham Borough Council’s YouTube Channel:- 

www.youtube.com/graveshamtv 

S Walsh
Service Manager (Communities)

Agenda

Part A
Items likely to be considered in Public

1. Apologies for absence 

2. To sign the minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 8)

3. To declare any interest members may have in the items contained on this 
agenda.   When declaring an interest a member must state what their 
interest is. 

4. To consider whether any items in Part A of the agenda should be 
considered in private or any items in Part B in public 

5. Delegated Decisions - Cabinet Members 
To report any decisions made by Cabinet Members under their delegated 
powers.

http://www.youtube.com/graveshamtv


6. Insurance Tender Update (Pages 9 - 12)

7. Minutes of the meeting of the Gravesham Joint Transportation Board held 
on Wednesday, 11 March 2020 

(Pages 13 - 18)

8. Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair is 
of the opinion should be considered as a matter of urgency. 

9. Exclusion 
To move, if required, that pursuant to Section 100A (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 that the public be excluded from any items 
included in Part B of the agenda because it is likely in view of the nature 
of business to be transacted that if members of the public are present 
during those items, there would be disclosure to them of exempt 
information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

Part B
Items likely to be considered in Private

10. Investment Opportunity – long term leasehold arrangement (Pages 19 - 94)

11.The Charter (formerly Eastern Quarter) Regeneration Development (Pages 95 - 
148)

12.Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair is 
of the opinion should be considered as a matter of urgency. 

Members

Cllr John Burden (Chair)
Cllr Lee Croxton (Vice-Chair)

Councillors: Shane Mochrie-Cox
Lenny Rolles
Brian Sangha
Narinderjit Singh Thandi
Jenny Wallace

Substitutes: To be notified



1

Cabinet

Monday, 23 March 2020 7.30 pm

Present:

Cllr John Burden (Chair)
Cllr Lee Croxton (Vice-Chair)

Councillors: Shane Mochrie-Cox
Lenny Rolles
Narinderjit Singh Thandi

Note: Councillors:  Dibben and Meade were also in attendance.

David Hughes Chief Executive
Stuart Bobby Director (Corporate Services)
Nick Brown Director (Housing & Operations)
Kevin Burbidge Director (Planning & Development)
Lauren Wallis Committee Services Officer (Minutes)

80. Apologies for absence 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Brian Sangha and Jenny Wallace.

81. To sign the minutes of the previous meeting 

The minutes fof the meeting held on 3 February 2020 were signed by the Chair.

82. To declare any interest members may have in the items contained on 
this agenda.   When declaring an interest a member must state what 
their interest is. 

Cllr Lenny Rolles declared an interest in agenda item 10 (Establishment of Rosherville 
Servicing Limited) and item 11 (Formation of a Local Authority Trading Company Subsidiary 
– Property Development Company) as he had been registered as a Director of the 
Rosherville and was the Chair of the Rosherville Limited Board. Cllr Lenny Rolles left the 
Chamber during consideration of these items.

83. To consider whether any items in Part A of the agenda should be 
considered in private or any items in Part B in public 

The Chair took the opportunity to thank everyone with bearing with the Leadership of the 
Council and the Management Team during this difficult time. He thanked Cllr Jordan Meade 
– Leader of the Conservative Group for his co-operation with regard to the adjusted 
administrative arrangements in that all decision-making meetings of the Council would take 
place with the minimum number of members and officers present, would also be politically 
proportional and debate and decision making would be kept concise for the protection of 
participants. It would continue to be possible to call-in Cabinet decisions but this would only 

Page 3 Agenda Item 2



Cabinet 23.03.2020

2

take place in consultation between the political parties in an effort to keep meetings to a 
minimum. Cllr Meade, who was in attendance, confirmed his agreement with the 
arrangements and the Chair advised of the agreement of the Independent Group.

The Chair continued that where possible, all decisions would be made by the appropriate 
individual or the Leader of the Council.

The IT Service had been asked to investigate the use of cameras and/or recording 
equipment at meetings going forward as it would be better to engage with all Members.

84. Delegated Decisions - Cabinet Members 

No decisions other than those already circulated had been made.

85. Lower Thames Crossing Supplementary Consultation 

Members were apprised of the Council's draft response to the supplementary consultation 
on the Lower Thames Crossing and received a review on the overall progress on this 
project.

The Director (Planning & Development) noted that the consultation had been extended by a 
week. However, the Leader of Thurrock Council had submitted a plea for a further extension 
given the current situation. A draft response would be submitted to Management Team and 
the Leader of the Council for consideration. The Government had responded positively to 
some of the Borough Council’s suggestions but there were still areas that lacked detail or 
clarity in the documents including the electrical sub-station and arisings from tunnels and 
their disposal and these would be addressed in the Council’s response.

The Chief Executive suggested the removal of the word “minor” in recommendation 1 to 
avoid the process becoming bogged down.

The Leader of the Conservative Group confirmed he was happy with the Cabinet’s 
approach.

Resolved that:

1) the draft response to Highways England's Lower Thames Crossing 
Supplementary Consultation Questionnaire set out in Appendix 3 for submission 
by 25 March 2020 and authorise the Director (Planning and Development, in 
consultation with the Leader of the Executive, to make any necessary 
typographical or other adjustments ahead of submission;

2) the Supplementary Consultation Appraisal in Appendix 4 be noted;
3) authority be delegated to the Chief Executive for the production of a letter to 

Highways England, which will be jointly signed by the Leader of the Executive, 
setting out the concerns not covered by that response set out in Appendix 3 of 
the report. This letter will be sent shortly after the close of the supplementary 
consultation; 

4)  the Planning Inspectorate be sent a copy of the agreed letter referred to in 3) 
above, emphasising the Council's concerns about the adequacy of information in 
the PEIR and this consultation; and 

Page 4



Cabinet 23.03.2020

3

5) It be agreed that the Director (Communities) write to Highways England from a 
property perspective including issues raised by the potential Compulsory 
Purchase of land at Cascades Leisure Centre.

86. Development of the Corporate Risk Register 2020-2021 

Cabinet was informed of the outcomes from Gravesham Borough Council’s annual risk 
identification and analysis exercise and were presented with a copy of the Corporate Risk 
Register for 2020/21.

Following a suggestion from the Chair to include a reference to Covid-19 be included in the 
Corporate Risk Register, the Director (Corporate Services) noted the steep learning curve 
with regard to the Council’s Business Continuity Plans given the current Covid-19 outbreak 
and asked permission from the Chair for delegated authority, in consultation with the Leader, 
to include that current learning in the finalised version of the Risk Register as considered 
appropriate. 

The Leader of the Conservative Group confirmed he was happy with the Cabinet’s 
approach.

Recommended that the Corporate Risk Register that has been developed for 
2020/21 be agreed for submission to Council.

87. Exclusion 

Resolved pursuant to Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 that the public be 
excluded during the following item of business because it was likely in view of the nature of 
business to be transacted that, if members of the public were present during this item, there 
would be disclosure to them of exempt information.

88. Establishment of Rosherville Servicing Limited 

Cllr Lenny Rolles left the Chamber during discussion and voting on this item.

Cabinet was provided with a business case, on behalf of the Board of Rosherville Limited, 
for the formation of a subsidiary company – Rosherville Servicing Limited. The Director 
(Housing & Operations) advised that the purpose of the company would be to provide 
vehicle servicing and repairs for the public and businesses and to provide an income stream 
for the Council.  Improvements made within the Vehicle Workshop operation had delivered 
efficiencies and spare capacity to enable the team to undertake the extra work. The 
business case had been approved by the Board of Rosherville Limited on 25 February 2020 
and the Vehicle Workshop would be ready to commence commercial work on 1 April. The 
Director (Housing & Operations) advised that Covid-19 was bound to have an adverse 
impact on customer demand but hopefully this impact would only be short term.  If Covid-19 
had an adverse impact on the Vehicle Workshop resources, work on the Council’s vehicle 
fleet would be prioritised.

The Executive Member for Operational Services felt that this was an excellent approach 
which would enhance the Council’s brand and he had every confidence in the operation and 
its employees.

Page 5



Cabinet 23.03.2020

4

Resolved that:

1) the formation of the Rosherville Servicing Limited subsidiary company be 
approved; 

2) the provision of £15,000 working capital to Rosherville Servicing Limited as set 
out within the business case be approved; and 

3) authority be provided for the Director (Housing & Operations) in conjunction with 
the Rosherville Limited Company Secretary to make the necessary 
arrangements to register the company with Companies House.

89. Formation of a Local Authority Trading Company Subsidiary – Property 
Development Company 

Cllr Lenny Rolles left the Chamber during discussion and voting on this item.

Members were provided with a business case, on behalf of the Board of Rosherville Limited, 
for the formation of a subsidiary company – Rosherville Property Development Limited. The 
Director (Corporate Services) explained that authority was being sought to create a property 
development subsidiary which it was felt would be a success because of the demand for 
housing in the town centre. It was important to note that approval of funding for the proposed 
scheme in the town centre was not being sought and this would be the subject of a further 
report.

With reference to the Covid-19 impact, the Council was awaiting advice from the Council’s 
advisors on this matter, Jones Lang LaSalle. 

Resolved that: 

1) the formation of the Rosherville Property Development Limited subsidiary 
company be approved; and 

2) authority be provided for the Director (Corporate Services) in conjunction with the 
Rosherville Limited Company Secretary to make the necessary arrangements to 
register the company with companies House.

Cllr Lenny Rolles returned to the Chamber.

90. Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair 
is of the opinion should be considered as a matter of urgency. 

Covid-19 Update

The Chief Executive advised that the Director (Corporate Services) had been tasked with 
keeping Councillors apprised of actions and issues and the Chief Executive was responsible 
for communications to staff. The Council’s Management Team met daily to consider new 
announcements from the Government and a number of different work streams had been set 
up. For example, there was a resilience work stream with regard to home working and 
compliance with Government guidance. A third of Council staff were currently working from 
home on a week on week off rota basis. New categories of vulnerability were being identified 
and the Government would be sending out letters to 1.5 million people in the UK the first of 
which would be delivered the next day who would then have to stay indoors for the next 12 

Page 6



Cabinet 23.03.2020

5

weeks. These people would need a great deal of support. The Government guidance on this 
had not yet arrived.  Another work stream was how to provide support to all vulnerable 
people in the Borough and those over the age of 70 years. The Government had announced 
a great deal of support for example, for businesses who would be offered a Business Rate 
relief and grants etc and the Council was making preparations to roll out this relief to 
businesses as quickly as possible when the funding from Government was received. 

The Chief Executive also advised of the following:

 £1billion of hardship support would be made available to people in real financial 
difficulty. However, Government guidance on how this funding was to be used had 
not yet been received.

 Issues had arisen about the closure of businesses and emergency regulations had 
been published in relation to Environmental Health and Trading Standards services 
which would enable officers to use prohibition powers and to issue fines for non-
compliance to public houses, restaurants etc. 

 There had been some modest changes to housing benefits and officers were working 
through this. Those making benefit claims were required to provide documents to 
support their claims and officers were considering using their discretion and asking 
claimants to submit their documents after the fact.

 The Civic Centre had been closed to the public as reception and other frontline staff 
had struggled to persuade people to maintain social distance. 

 Some local authorities had closed their parks including the Royal Parks, to the public. 
The Council did not consider this measure a necessity in the Borough at the present 
time.

 Many local authorities were also closing children’s play areas because of concern 
about social distancing. This subject would be discussed further at tomorrow’s 
meeting of Management Team.

 One of the side effects of home working had been an increase of parking on 
residential streets and some local authorities had chosen not to take enforcement 
action. The Council intended to take enforcement action in the case of pinch points 
and access for emergency vehicles and common sense would be applied.

The Chief Executive concluded that it was a very busy time for officers and it would not be 
viable to give Members a daily update. Tribute was paid to the officers of the Council for all 
their hard work in an unprecedented situation. 

The Director (Corporate Services) noted that it now recognised that the 9am to 5pm Monday 
to Friday was no longer reserved work time and the resilience team was working all hours. In 
the present circumstances the conventional out of hours service would not work and 
improved resilience arrangements were being put in place.

Chief Executive

The Chair noted that David Hughes last day as Chief Executive was 31st March 2020 and 
Stuart Bobby would be assuming the role of Chief Executive from 1st April 2020 as planned. 
However, David Hughes had offered to stay on for an additional month to assist the Council 
in coping with the current situation and the Chair expressed his appreciation. The Chief 
Executive had cancelled his farewell gathering. However, Cabinet wished to thank him for 
everything he had done for the Council and presented him with a small gift in the shape of a 
suitably engraved sterling silver Scottish Quaich which represented the gift of friendship. The 

Page 7



Cabinet 23.03.2020

6

Chair hoped that the Chief Executive to come back later in the year to celebrate his 
retirement.

The Chief Executive thanked Members and advised that they could not have made a better 
choice of gift and stated that it had been a privilege to work at Gravesham.

Cllr Thandi advised that the Sikh Vaisakhi community event had had to be cancelled but he 
intended visit the Civic Centre to present a gift to the Chief Executive.

Close of meeting 

The meeting ended at 8.07 pm

Page 8



Classification: Public
Key Decision: No

Gravesham Borough Council

Report to: Cabinet

Date: 1 June 2020

Reporting officer: Sarah Parfitt, Director (Corporate Services) 

Subject: Insurance Tender Update

Purpose and summary of report: 
To provide Cabinet with an update regarding to the renewal of the council's insurance 
arrangements.  

Recommendations:
1. This report is for information only.

1. Introduction

1.1 A report was submitted to Cabinet in January 2020 advising that the council’s existing 
insurance contract will expire on the 29th June 2020 and of the need for the council to 
determine how cover for beyond this date should be procured. 

1.2 The report advised that in considering the council’s options for insurance provision, 
initial investigations had taken place to understand the potential protection services 
provided by the Local Government Mutual (LGM), in addition to procurement of 
insurance through the usual tendering route. The report set out the intention to continue 
these investigations and, subject to a satisfactory offer coming forward, seek to obtain a 
quotation for the council’s requirements from the LGM.

2. Update on progress on discussions with LGM

2.1 Since January, discussions have been ongoing with representatives from the LGM and 
the council has shared relevant data with the LGM to enable it to assess the council’s 
cover requirements and prepare an offer for the council to consider.

2.2 There have been delays in the LGM presenting an offer for the council to consider.  In 
addition, since Mid-March there has been a need for council resources to be focused on 
and deployed to delivering the council’s response to the Coronavirus pandemic.  These 
two events have resultantly required officers to revisit the procurement options for 
securing appropriate insurance protections for the council from 30 June 2020. 

Page 9 Agenda Item 6



2

2.3 Negotiations with the council’s existing insurance provider, Zurich Municipal, have 
resulted in a proposal for the council to secure ongoing provision of insurance cover 
from Zurich for further two years with a percentage reduction on existing premium costs.  
This would enable the council to reassess its insurance requirements in a further 18 
months’ time and consider its options for procurement at that time, which could again 
include any offer from the LGM.

2.2 In accordance with the council’s Constitution and with due regard to the Government’s 
Procurement Procedure Note (PPN 01/20), the Director (Corporate Services) has 
agreed to a two year contract being put in place with Zurich Municipal to provide 
insurance cover for the council from 30 June 2020 to 29 June 2022, with a further 
procurement exercise taking place at an appropriate time to seek provision for cover 
after this date.

4. Background Papers

4.1 There are no background papers pertaining to this report

Page 10



IMPLICATIONS APPENDIX 1
     

Legal Procurement Policy Note (PPN 01/20) Responding to Covid -19 states that in 
responding to COVID-10 contracting authorities may enter into contracts without 
competing or advertising the requirement, so long as certain tests have been met..

Finance and Value 
for Money 

The arrangements set out in this report provide a short-term reduction in annual 
premium costs whilst enabling the council to carry out a full procurement exercise in 
due course to ensure value for money is secured from its insurance arrangements.

Risk Assessment It is of critical importance that the council has sufficient arrangements in place to 
manage the risks it may be exposed to; the council will use externally-provided 
cover to protect itself primarily against the financial consequences of risks it is 
unable to fully mitigate or manage to a tolerable level

A data protection impact assessment (DPIA) should be carried out at the start of 
any major project involving the use of personal data or if you are making a 
significant change to an existing process. 

a. Does the project/change being recommended through this paper involve the 
processing of personal data or special category data or criminal offence data? 
A definition of each type of data can be found on the Information 
Commissioner’s Office website via the above links.

b. If yes to question a, have you completed and attached a DPIA including Data 
Protection Officer advice?
No.

Data Protection 
Impact Assessment

c. If no to question b, please seek advice from your nominated DPIA assessor or 
the Information Governance Team at gdpr@medway.gov.uk.
N/A

a. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper have 
potential to cause adverse impact or discriminate against different groups in the 
community? If yes, please explain answer.
No

b. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper make a 
positive contribution to promoting equality? If yes, please explain answer.
N/A

Equality Impact 
Assessment

In submitting this report, the Chief Officer doing so is confirming that they have 
given due regard to the equality impacts of the decision being considered, as noted 
in the table above

Corporate Plan There are no direct implications for the Council’s strategic priorities, 

Crime and Disorder Crime and disorder issues will be considered as part of the council’s cover 
requirements

Digital and website 
implications

N/A

Safeguarding 
children and 

N/A

Page 11

https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/key-definitions/what-is-personal-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/special-category-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/criminal-offence-data/
mailto:gdpr@medway.gov.uk


4

vulnerable adults

Page 12



1

Gravesham Joint Transportation Board

Wednesday, 11 March 2020 7.30 pm

Present:

County Councillor Alan Michael Ridgers (Vice-Chair in the Chair)

Councillors: Brian Francis
Peter Scollard
Bob Lane
John Burden (KCC)
Lauren Sullivan (KCC)

Parish Councillors: Cllr Max Bramer and Cllr Dawn Bramer (Meopham Parish Council)

Kevin Gore District Manager – Gravesham (KCC)
Shane Hymers Fastrack Development Manager (KCC)
Michael Jennings Arriva – Area Head of Commercial
Nick May Parking Services Manager (GBC)
Chris Wakeford Committee Services Officer (Minutes)

141. Councillor Colin Caller - Chair of Gravesham Joint Transportation Board 

The Board observed a minutes silence as a mark of respect for Cllr Colin Caller who had 
recently passed away.

The Board also took time to reflect on all those who had been affected by the Coronavirus.

142. Apologies 

Apologies for absence were received from County Cllr Diane Marsh, County Cllr Bryan 
Sweetland, Cllr Leslie Hills and Mr Jason Mee - Director (Transport Operative) for RedRoute 
Buses.

143. To sign the minutes of the previous meeting 

The minutes of the meeting held on 9 January 2020 were signed by the Chair.

144. To declare any interests members may have in the items contained on 
this agenda.   When declaring an interest members should state what 
their interest is. 

No declarations of interest were made.

Page 13 Agenda Item 7



Gravesham Joint Transportation Board 11.03.2020

2

145. Report back items outstanding from previous meeting(s) 

Minute 124. Corner Protection (Yellow Lines) at the junction of Cob Drive and Forge 
Lane - Requested by Cllr Bob Lane

The District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) explained that he had received some 
correspondence from the Parish council that the consultation had started and he is awaiting 
further information on this matter.

Cllr Bob Lane advised the Board that the consultation will end in 6 weeks.

Minute 125. Regular Parking Enforcement - Requested by Cllr Bob Lane

The Parking Services Manager explained that he had circulated the latest enforcement 
sheets for additional patrols that the Civil Enforcement Officers have been making at Shorne 
Country Park and Jeskyns.  The observation sheets show the days the patrols have been 
made and what action was taken.

To summarise since 20 July 2019 to 06 March 2020:

Jeskyns – 128 visits and 100 Penalty Charge Notices issued.

Shorne  - 61 Visits and 1 Penalty Charge Notice issued.

Cllr Bob Lane advised that he thought that in the case of Shorne Country Park there is more 
of a traffic regulation order issue and there have been some talks about extending yellow 
lines.

Minute 127. The Hill, Northfleet - Speeding issues and Accidents - Requested by 
Cllr Peter Scollard

A response was received on behalf of Michael Payne which is set out below:

Thank you for your letter of 24 January 2020 regarding safety cameras in Kent.

In the past five years three camera enforcement devices were installed in Kent. An average 
Speed Camera system was installed at A28 Brooksend, Thanet, with Red Light monitoring 
cameras installed at two locations, Cheriton Road Folkestone and A254 Margate 
Road/Princes Road, Ramsgate. These were all installed following clear evidence emerging 
that speed related crashes at those locations could be reduced by the introduction of 
enforcement by cameras.

The Kent and Medway Safety Camera Partnership do not normally sanction the introduction 
of cameras where there is no clear evidence that they would reduce serious or fatal speed 
related crashes, over a 1.5km stretch of road, in a three-year period. The criteria for safety 
cameras can be found at the safety camera partnership website – www.kmscp.org. 

There are no plans at the moment to change these criteria, which are very similar across the 
country, but officers have been asked to investigate the area of The Hill, Northfleet as 
requested.

Page 14

http://www.kmscp.org/


Gravesham Joint Transportation Board 11.03.2020

3

Thank you for raising this matter and I hope that this answers your questions.

Yours sincerely

Michael Payne
Member for Tonbridge
Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport
Kent County Council

The District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) explained that whilst there clearly wouldn’t be a 
change in policy; additional Automatic Traffic Counts have been completed and he is waiting 
for the results.

County Cllr Lauren Sullivan suggested that alternatives to a speed camera should be 
explored (e.g. pelican crossing)

Cllr Scollard advised the Board that there had been another three accidents since this matter 
was last reported and requested an update on the widening / heightening of an existing 
traffic island.

The District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) explained that this matter had been passed to the 
Schemes Team and he will get an update.

146. RedRoute Buses - deferred from last meeting 

The Board noted that Mr Jason Mee – Director (Transport Operative) for RedRoute Buses 
had submitted his apologies again and there was no further update on this matter.

147. Highways Works Programme 2019/20 onwards (Information only) 

At the last meeting The District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) said he would look into the 
Lion roundabout issues raised by Cllr Hills; including a stop sign where vehicles exit Dering 
Way. 

The District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) explained that this work had not been done 
because there is now potential that Highways England will make amendments to the 
roundabout as part of the Lower Thames Crossing. If Highways England does not do their 
works then KCC can revisit this matter, higher railings with a window for increased visibility 
may be an option.

At the last meeting The District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) agreed to look into the 
Springhead / Sainsbury’s roundabout where poor visibility and speeding cars are creating 
dangerous conditions. 

The District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) explained that this matter had been looked at but 
the information hadn’t been received yet. The District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) will 
report back on this matter at next meeting and provide County Cllr Burden with an update as 
soon as possible. 

Page 15



Gravesham Joint Transportation Board 11.03.2020

4

148. Any Other Business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair 
is of the opinion should be considered as a matter of urgency. 

Whitehill Traffic Issues – raised by Cllr Tony Rana

The District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) explained that an internal KCC meeting has been 
held in the Whitehill Road area and there is clearly a problem with traffic at peak times.

The District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) hasn’t been able to arrange a ‘walk around’ the 
area with Cllr Rana yet but he will try to arrange this in the near future.

149. RedRoute Buses - deferred from last meeting 

The Board noted that Mr Jason Mee – Director (Transport Operative) for RedRoute Buses 
had submitted his apologies again and there was no further update on this matter.

150. Highways Works Programme 2019/20 onwards (Information only) 

The Board was presented with a report that provided an update on identified schemes 
approved for construction in 2019/20.

The District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) highlighted the following:

 The machine resurfacing works will also include Wrotham Road which will be closed for 
6 to 8 weeks during the summer holidays. There will also be a clause that the road 
cannot be dug up for 5 years after the completion of these works.
The first phase of works will cover The Woodlands Beefeater through to Essex Road.
The District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) will send round the resurfacing plans to 
Members.
The District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) agreed to liaise with the Parking Services 
Manager (GBC) on these works due to the recent Controlled Parking Zone changes.

 The temporary tarmac in Windmill Street (next to Community Square) will be replaced 
with blocks.

 The District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) agreed that he would look into providing the 
same resurfacing material used on Colyer Road for St Marks Avenue

 There will be a report submitted to the next meeting of the Board on flooding / drainage 
in Culverstone. The District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) agreed to provide County Cllr 
Burden with the Section 19 report (regarding drainage improvements) on this matter by 
Wednesday.

 Notice has been served on the Texaco garage in Perry Street regarding the drainage of 
soapy water. They have 28 days after the notice has been served to do the works after 
which KCC will do the works and charge them for it.

 The District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) agreed to look into an issue with faulty 
reflective bollards at Rosherville.

 The District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) advised the Board that there is a programme 
for cleaning signs in the Borough. 

The Board noted the report

Page 16



Gravesham Joint Transportation Board 11.03.2020

5

151. Fastrack Update 

Shane Hymer – Fastrack Development Manager – KCC provided the Board with a verbal 
update, which was supported by Michael Jennings - Arriva – Area Head of Commercial. 
The update included:

 Garrick Street Fastrack Upgrades
 Springhead Bridge
 Proposed Fastrack autonomous shuttle trial
 Mobility as a Service (Southeastern/Arriva/KCC Partnership)
 Electric Buses
 TfL services

Following questions from the Board; the Fastrack Development Manager highlighted the 
following:

 Significant changes have been made to the timetable recently and the service continues 
to be fine-tuned.

 Barrock Rd / Barrock Street Bus Hub: Fastrack will fund canopies on both sides in 
Gravesham colours as well as an interactive display / real time bus boards.

 Springhead Bridge: Fastrack are scheduled to serve the bridge from April 26 
and will give every resident a Fastrack pack to encourage them to try the service.

 Autonomous shuttle trial on Fastrack: this is in the early stages and is a test bed for 
innovation.

 Electric buses: bidding for Ebbsfleet to be one of the UK’s first electric bus town
 Pantograph charging will be used for the electric buses
 There are plans at Ebbsfleet Station, not immediate but is on the list for future works
 The customer survey scores weren’t perfect but when benchmarked against other 

services they are good for the industry.
 Bus Apps will be improved to provide clearer information on bus locations etc.

Parking Services Manager (GBC) explained that at the last meeting of the Board, he sought 
approval to replace bus gate enforcement that GBC would be administering ourselves which 
KCC approved. Lorna Day is doing the agreement with the legal team and this matter could 
be added into that. The cameras would need to be compatible with GBC’s systems / back 
office.

The Board thanked Shane Hymer – Fastrack Development Manager – KCC and Michael 
Jennings - Arriva – Area Head of Commercial for an informative presentation.

152. Notice of Intention for installing/removing disabled bays at various 
locations across the Borough 

The Parking Services Manager (GBC) presented the Board with a Notice of Intention for 
installing/removing disabled bays at various locations across the Borough, as detailed in the 
notice.

The Board supported the installing/removing disabled bays at various locations across the 
Borough, as detailed in the notice.

Page 17



Gravesham Joint Transportation Board 11.03.2020

6

153. Any Other Business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair 
is of the opinion should be considered as a matter of urgency 

The District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) advised the Board that if they wish to report any 
potholes in the Borough; please contact him. If residents wish to report potholes they should 
be signposted to the website / App.

The District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) agreed to work with the Gravesham Access 
Group regarding dropped kerbs etc.

Close of Meeting 

The meeting ended at 8.49pm

Page 18



Document is Restricted

Page 19 Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 95 Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 111



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 137



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 To sign the minutes of the previous meeting
	6 Insurance Tender Update
	7 Minutes of the meeting of the Gravesham Joint Transportation Board held on Wednesday, 11 March 2020
	10 Investment Opportunity – long term leasehold arrangement
	2. Appendix 2 - Greenwich Development Site Map
	3. Appendix 3 - Reef_Brochure_Presentation_031019 Investment Summary only
	4. Appendix 4 - JLL Market Report  v6
	5. Appendix 5 - Greenwich Project - Risk and Opportunity Matrix - Final
	6. Appendix 6 - Greenwich Peninsula Project

	11 The Charter (formerly Eastern Quarter) Regeneration Development
	2. Appendix 2 - The Charter CGIs
	3. Appendix 3 - JLL Advice - May 2020
	4. Appendix 4 - The Charter - Risk and Opportunity Matrix


